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1. Case Study Assumptions
To ensure comparability across economies, the indicator developed a case study that measures the procurement process for resurfacing a road. In answering the questionnaire, please take into consideration the following assumptions:

	BidCo
	· Is one of the companies participating in the call for tender and meets all solvency, technical and administrative requirements to compete;

· Is a privately and domestically-owned medium-sized Limited Liability Company (or its most common legal equivalent);

· Operates in «Survey_City»;

· Is up to date with all regulations and is in good standing with all relevant authorities, including those related to taxes;

· Has all licenses and permits needed to operate in this technical area;

· Has already responded to a public call for tender and is already registered with the procuring entity defined below.


	Contract
	· Entails resurfacing 20 km of a flat two-lane road (not a highway and not under concession), connecting «Survey_City» to another city within «DB_Proc_Survey_Economy_FullName2» (and within the same state, region or province as «Survey_City», if applicable), with an asphalt overlay of 40 to 59 mm (or its most common equivalent in «DB_Proc_Survey_Economy_FullName2»);

· Value: USD 2.5 Million (equivalent to «DB_Proc_Currency_Code» «DB_Proc_Contract_Value»);

· Does not include any other work (such as site clearance, subsoil drainage, bridgework or further routine maintenance).


	Procuring Entity
	· Is the agency in charge of procuring construction works for the authority that owns the road described above;

· Is the sole funder of the works, has budget for the works and is solvent.


	Procurement Process
	· Is an open, unrestricted, and competitive public call for tender for resurfacing a road like the one described above;

· Is completed without complaints/challenges/protests from interested parties;

· Ends with the awarding of the contract to BidCo, whose bid satisfied all technical and administrative criteria and offered the best value for money.



Note – In the context of this questionnaire, the term “legal framework” refers to the comprehensive body of instruments (laws, acts, regulations, detailed procedures, tender documents, etc.) that regulate the entire procurement process (from needs-assessment to post-tendering).

*  *  *

Please provide your responses to the following sections taking into account the case study assumptions provided above. For your convenience, last year’s answers are included in this questionnaire where available. Please note that they represent a unified answer based on all the answers we received from various contributors in «Survey_Economy». If this information has changed, or you disagree, please update the answer and indicate the reasons for the change.

2. Introductory Information 
	PROCURING ENTITY

	1. What is the entity that conducts procurement for the authority that owns the majority of roads comparable to the one described above?
	Last Year:  «DB_Proc_procuring_entity_NAME_publi»
This Year: 

	For the remainder of the questionnaire, whenever reference is made to the "procuring entity" please refer to the entity you indicated here.

	2. How many open, unrestricted and competitive public calls for tenders for road work contracts were completed in the last 5 years by the Procuring Entity you selected in Q.1?

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 None – the latest open tendering procedure completed by the Procuring Entity was in year: 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 1-10

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 11-50

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 More than 51


	LEGAL FRAMEWORK

	3. Please provide a list of the laws, regulations and other binding materials (including guidelines and manuals) that regulate public procurement in «Survey_Economy». Please include legislation or other binding materials promulgated at the national/federal level as well as any additional legislation that is applicable to the Procuring Entity you selected in Q.1.

Last Year: «DB_Proc_laws_list_publi»
This Year: 

	4. Please list any mandatory standard tender documents and/or standard contract terms that the Procuring Entity must use for a contract like the one described in Section 1.
	
Comment: 

	a. If such documents are in use, can the Procuring Entity modify any of their clauses without justification?
	 FORMDROPDOWN 

Comment: 


	REFORM UPDATE

	5. Are you aware of any change (in practice or in laws/regulations/procedures) related to public procurement between May 2, 2018 and May 1, 2019? For example: amendments to applicable public procurement laws, enactment and/or implementation of new regulations, implementation or improvement of e-procurement platforms, changes to the bid security and performance guarantee framework, etc.
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	a. If “Yes”, please describe the reform(s). Please include information on the date(s) of adoption, publication and enforcement of the new law(s) or regulation(s).
	 


3. E-procurement Platforms and Statistics
Please refer to the Procuring Entity you selected in Q.1.
	
	Answer

	6. If one or several electronic procurement portal(s) (i.e., an official website(s) specifically and exclusively dedicated to public procurement) are in operation please mark which platform would most commonly be used by the Procuring Entity.
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_eproc_portal_practice_most_used_publi»
This Year: 

	7. Out of all road works contracts with the Procuring Entity, how many are procured through the portal you listed in Q.6?
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	8. Please complete the table below referring to the portal you listed in Q.6. 

	
	Select all available features
	Select if used in more than 50% of procurement processes
	Indicate who can access this information or perform this action

	Accessing notices on procurement opportunities
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Accessing tender documentation 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Asking the procuring entity for clarifications
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Submitting tenders 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Submitting bid security
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Opening bids
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Holding virtual meetings of the evaluation committee
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Notifying decisions (clarifications, award, etc.)
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Accessing award decisions 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Accessing explanations of award decisions
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Submitting performance guarantees
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Signing the contract 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Accessing the contract
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Accessing contract amendments 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Filing complaints/challenges to procurement docs/decisions
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Accessing decisions made regarding complaints
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Submitting invoices to the procuring entity 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Receiving payments from the procuring entity
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Other, please explain
	 


	9. Which of the following information about road works contracts procured by the Procuring Entity is made publicly available? 

	
	Cost
	Length (km)
	Duration (days) 
	Web

link for resource

	Estimated cost/length/completion time – as calculated by the Procuring Entity at the time of advertising the procurement opportunity. 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Contract cost/length/completion time – as agreed upon in the contract signed by the Procuring Entity and the contractor.
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	

	Actual cost/length/completion time – as measured at project completion.
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	


4. Phases of the Procurement Process
This section of the questionnaire follows the chronological evolution of a procurement cycle, starting with the process the Procuring Entity undertakes to assess its needs and secure the budget. Section 4 also explores the steps that a local company would have to undertake in order to: (i) secure a government contract; (ii) deliver the agreed-upon works; and (iii) obtain payment.

Phase 1: Budgeting and Needs Assessment
In answering, please refer to the Procuring Entity you selected in Q.1.
	
	Answer

	10. According to the legal framework, when the Procuring Entity prepares to advertise a new procurement opportunity for a contract like the one described in Section 1, which of the following are used to estimate the contract value and projected length of works? Select all that apply.
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Market analysis

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Standardized unit cost

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Project-specific technical drawings

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Feasibility study

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Similar projects from previous years

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other, please explain: 
Legal basis: 

	11. In practice, is the estimated contract value / budget published in the tender notice/tender documents?
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_plans_estimate_contract_value_published_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Comment: 

	12. Is the Procuring Entity required to have already allocated budget to a specific project before tendering?
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_budget_certificate_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Comment: 

	13. In an open tendering procedure, how often does the Procuring Entity award a contract without having already set aside all the necessary funds? 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)


Phase 2: from Advertisement to Bid Submission
The following questions relate to the initial phase of the procurement process, focusing on how the procurement method is chosen, how the tender is advertised, and how bids are collected from the private sector. 
In answering, please refer to the Procuring Entity you selected in Q.1.
	PROCUREMENT METHOD

	14. According to the legal framework, would open tendering (i.e. the process in which any business can submit a bid) be the default method of procurement in «DB_Proc_Survey_Economy_FullName2» for a contract like the one described in Section 1?
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_open_default_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	15. According to the legal framework, after the advertisement of an open tendering procedure can the Procuring Entity require bidders to participate in a prequalification process specific to that contract before being able to submit their economic offer?
	 FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis:      

	a. If “Yes”, how often would this happen for a contract like the one described in Section 1?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	b. In practice, how many days would be necessary for BidCo to receive a decision on its prequalification from the moment it submitted all the necessary documents?
	 

	16. In practice, what is the most common method of procurement for a contract like the one described in Section 1?

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Open tendering is the default by law and also the most common in practice

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Open tendering is not the default but remains the most common in practice
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other (i.e., direct award, reverse auction, competitive dialogue, etc.). Please mention the most common method and reference the relevant legal basis – 

	17. Does the legal framework define the situations in which each procurement method should be used? Please list the articles regulating each legally-available procurement method.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	18. Does the legal framework prohibit dividing contracts to circumvent thresholds for open tendering?
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_open_circumvent_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	a. In practice, how often does this happen?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	19. What are the commonly used strategies to circumvent the rules and thresholds on open procurement? 
	 


20. Which of the following materials need to be made publicly available by the Procuring Entity? Select all that apply.

	
	By law
	Legal Basis
	Web link to access materials

	Procurement plans
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	
	

	Model procurement documents and materials / standard contract conditions
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	
	

	Tender notices 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	
	

	Tender documents and technical specifications
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	
	

	Notices of award / bidding results
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	
	

	Contract
	 FORMCHECKBOX 

	
	


	TENDER NOTICES & TENDER DOCUMENTS

	21. According to the legal framework, is there a minimum time limit between the advertisement of the tender notice and the submission deadline for an open tendering procedure like the one described in Section 1?
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_time_bid_preparation_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	a. In practice, how many days would pass between the advertisement of the tender notice and the submission deadline for a contract like the one described in Section 1?
	

	b. How often does the Procuring Entity modify the tender documents for any reason after advertisement, but before the submission deadline?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	c. In practice, by how many days would the timeframe you indicated in Q.21.a be extended due to these modifications?
	

	22. Does the legal framework establish the minimum content of the tender notice and tender documents? If "Yes", please list the requirements.
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_open_content_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	a. In practice, which of the following are usually NOT included in the tender notice and/or tender documents?

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Selection criteria (i.e. technical, professional and financial qualifications that bidders must meet)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Grounds for exclusion of bidders

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Amount of bid security, if any

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Form(s) of bid security, if any

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Evaluation grids and detailed award criteria

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Main terms and conditions of the contract

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Estimated contract value

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Payment schedule under the procurement contract

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other, please list any elements that you think should be included in the tender notice or tender documents but are not usually available: 


	SUBCONTRACTING

	23. Which of the following aspects of subcontracting is regulated by the applicable legal framework? Select all that apply.
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Features – the legal framework regulates the administrative process to subcontract, the limits of subcontracting, the authorizations required, etc. Legal basis: 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Disclosure – the legal framework regulates when and how companies should inform the Procuring Entity of their intent to subcontract. Legal basis: 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Liability – the legal framework regulates liability of the contractor and subcontractor in case of poor performance. Legal basis: 

	24. In practice, if the intent to subcontract was not disclosed in the bid, what is the contractor who decides to subcontract after the contract is signed required to do?

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Inform the procuring entity

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Inform the procuring entity and seek its approval

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Subcontracting is not possible unless the intent to subcontract was disclosed in the bid

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 The matter is not regulated

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 None of the above – Comment: 


	CLARIFICATIONS

	25. In practice, how are clarification requests from potential bidders usually addressed? 

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 The procuring entity addresses all clarifications in a public meeting

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 The procuring entity will answer, and it is always required to communicate the answer to all other bidders too
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 The procuring entity will answer, but it is not always required to communicate the answer to all other bidders

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 The procuring entity will only answer to the relevant bidder

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other, please explain: 
Legal Basis: 

	a. In practice, how often are clarifications used as an opportunity to negotiate with the Procuring Entity?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)


	BID SECURITY

	26. According to the legal framework, is BidCo required to provide a form of bid guarantee?
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_guarantee_bid_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	a. If bid guarantee is not required by law, would it usually be requested by the Procuring Entity for a contract like the one described in Section 1?
	 FORMDROPDOWN 

Amount in practice: 

	27. In practice, which instrument would BidCo most commonly use as a bid guarantee? 

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Bid security deposit - Please mark the most common form:
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Cash/Certified check

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Bank guarantee/Letter of credit

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Personal guarantee

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Insurance guarantee

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Bid bond

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other, please explain 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Bid security declaration (i.e. a bidder’s formal commitment to signing the contract if selected)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other, please explain: 


Phase 3: from Bid Opening to Contract Signing
The following questions relate to bid opening, bid evaluation, exclusion and contract signing. 
In answering, please refer to the Procuring Entity you selected in Q.1.
	TIME

	28. Does the legal framework establish a timeframe for the Procuring Entity to proceed to bid opening once the deadline for bid submission has been reached?
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_time_opening_law_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	a. In practice, how many days after the deadline for bid submission does the Procuring Entity proceed to bid opening? If bid opening is carried out in multiple sessions, please answer this question considering the first session. If bid opening happens immediately, please indicate 0 days.
	Time: 
Main reasons for delay: 

	29. In practice, in a case comparable to the case study scenario, how many days would pass between bid opening and public notice of award (i.e. the moment in which all tenderers, participants and relevant parties are notified of the award decision), considering that no complaints/challenges/protests have been filed? In this estimate, please include the time to evaluate the bids, notify all bidders of the decision and notify the winner of the award. If there is no public notice, please indicate the time until notification of BidCo. 
	Time: 
Main reasons for delay: 

	a. In practice, between bid opening and public notice of award, how often does the Procuring Entity ask questions/additions to bidders on the documents they submitted?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	b. In practice, by how many days would the timeframe you indicated in Q.29 be extended due to questions/additions asked by the Procuring Entity?
	 

	30. Is there a standstill (or pause) period between public notice of award and contract signing to allow unsuccessful bidders to challenge the award decision? 
	  FORMDROPDOWN 
 

Length: 

	31. In practice, in a case comparable to the case study scenario, how many days would pass on average between public notice of award and contract signing? Please include the time for the winner to submit relevant documents and the time to sign the contract. 
	Time:  
Main reasons for delay: 


	a. Does BidCo need to obtain work permits or other administrative authorizations between public notice of award and contract signing? Please include environmental permits, occupancy permits, activity permits, etc. as applicable.
	  FORMDROPDOWN 
 

Please list them: 

	b. If “Yes”, how many days out of the total time you indicated in Q.31 are devoted to obtaining such permits/authorizations?
	 

	32. In practice, how many days would pass on average between contract signing and receipt of a notice to proceed with the works? 
	Time: 
Main reasons for delay: 

	a. Does BidCo need to obtain work permits or other administrative authorizations between contract signing and receipt of a notice to proceed with the works? Please include environmental permits, occupancy permits, activity permits, etc. as applicable.
	  FORMDROPDOWN 
 

Please list them: 

	b. If “Yes”, how many days out of the total time you indicated in Q.32 are devoted to obtaining such permits/authorizations?
	 


	EVALUATION & AWARD

	33. Selection committee – Which of the following characteristics are regulated by the applicable legal framework? Select all that apply.
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 The number of members of the committee

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 The education requirements of members of the committee

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 The professional requirements of members of the committee

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 The process to appoint the members of the committee

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 None of the above – the matter is not regulated

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other, please explain 
Legal basis: 

	34. Are employees of the Procuring Entity required to follow a mandatory code of conduct or ethics that includes topics like screening procedures, conflict of interest, training requirements, etc.?
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_mandatory_code_conduct_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	a. In practice, how often do employees of the Procuring Entity follow this code?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	35. According to the legal framework, which award criterion would be used for a contract like the one described in Section 1?

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Price

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Price and other qualitative elements (i.e. best value for money or the most advantageous combination of cost, time to completion, quality and sustainability, or the most economically advantageous tender)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 The choice is left at the discretion of the Procuring Entity

Legal basis: 

	36. Does the legal framework require all non-price evaluation criteria to be objective and quantifiable?
	 FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	37. In practice, how often is the award decision based solely on price and not on best value for money?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	38. Does the legal framework establish a criteria to identify abnormally low bids? 
	  FORMDROPDOWN 
 

Legal Basis: 


	39. Does the legal framework define what constitutes a non-substantial error?
	  FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	a. In practice, how often does the Procuring Entity require bidders to amend their offers (because of mistakes, arithmetic errors, etc.)?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	b. In practice, how often is a bid disqualified solely because of a non-substantial error/formality (for example, a missing document, formatting of the bidding documents, etc.)?


	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	c. In practice, in these cases would the bidder be given the opportunity to rectify such error before disqualification?
	 FORMDROPDOWN 

Comment: 


	EXCLUSION & LOSS

	40. When a bidder is excluded before the contract is awarded, is it provided with an explanation of the reasons for the exclusion in writing?

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes, the bidder must always be provided with an explanation in writing – Legal basis and timeframe: 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes, but only upon request of the bidder – Legal basis and timeframe: 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No, the excluded bidder will be notified directly in the contract award

	41. When a bidder loses, is it provided with an explanation of the reasons for the loss in writing?

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes, the bidder must always be provided with an explanation in writing – Legal basis and timeframe: 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes, but only upon request of the bidder – Legal basis and timeframe: 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No


Phase 4: Contract Management
In answering, please refer to the Procuring Entity you selected in Q.1. 
	PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE

	42. According to the legal framework, is BidCo required to provide a performance guarantee deposit that ensures a source of compensation in case of failure to perform its contractual obligations?
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_perf_guarantee_law_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	a. If performance guarantee is not required by law, would it usually be requested by the Procuring Entity for a contract like the one described in Section 1?
	  FORMDROPDOWN 
 

Amount in practice: 

	43. In practice, which instrument would BidCo most commonly use as a performance guarantee?

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Cash / Certified check

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Certificate of deposit

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Performance / Completion Bond

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Insurance guarantee

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Bank Guarantee / Letter of Credit

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Payment retention until satisfactory completion of the contract

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other, please explain 

	44. In practice, how long does it usually take for the Procuring Entity to return the performance guarantee in full once the works have been completed and accepted by the Procuring Entity? 
	 


	CONTRACT RENEGOTIATIONS / AMENDMENTS

	45. Which of the following aspects of contract management are regulated by the applicable legal framework? Select all that apply.
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Renegotiations. Legal basis: 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Changing (variation) orders/price adjustments – i.e. modifications below a certain threshold or clearly defined in the terms of the contract. Legal basis: 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Additional works – i.e. works by the original contractor that have become necessary and that were not included in the initial procurement. Legal basis: 

	46. How often would a contract like the one described in Section 1 be renegotiated? 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	47. If the contract described in Section 1 were more complex (i.e., lengthier and/or more costly execution, more complex scope or object, etc.), how often would it be renegotiated?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	48. According to the legal framework, is there a percentage of price increase below which the procuring entity is not required to provide a reason for the renegotiation? If "Yes", please provide the percentage and the relevant legal basis.
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_reneg_price_increase_below_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Percentage: 
Legal Basis: 

	49. According to the legal framework, is there a percentage of price increase above which the procuring entity is not allowed to renegotiate and is always required to re-tender? If "Yes", please provide the percentage and the relevant legal basis.
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_reneg_price_increase_above_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Percentage: 
Legal Basis: 

	50. In practice, are the results of contract renegotiations made publicly available?
	 FORMDROPDOWN 

Comment: 

	51. In practice, how many days would pass on average from the moment one of the parties requests/initiates a renegotiation of the contract until a new contract amendment is signed?
	Time: 
Comment: 

	52. How often do bidders submit unrealistically low bids to win the contract, confident of having a possibility to renegotiate at a later stage?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	53. How often are "emergencies" used as a reason to renegotiate?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	54. How often would a changing (variation) order/price adjustment (i.e. a modification below a certain threshold or clearly defined in the terms of the contract) take place in a contract like the one described in Section 1? 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	a. In practice, how many days would pass on average from the moment that the modification becomes necessary until a changing (variation) order/price adjustment is issued?
	 Time: 
Comment:      

	55. How often would additional works related to the initial contract (i.e. works by the original contractor that have become necessary and that were not included in the initial procurement) be awarded to the same contractor through direct award? 


	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	a. In practice, how many days would pass on average from the moment additional works become necessary until they are awarded to the same original contractor?
	 Time: 
Comment:      

	56. In practice, what are the commonly used strategies to circumvent the renegotiation rules in the context of re-tendering?
	 


Phase 5: Payment, Delays and Quality Assessment
The following questions relate to payment and inspections. 
In answering, please refer to the Procuring Entity you selected in Q.1.
	PAYMENT

	57. According to the legal framework, is there a limit to how much the Procuring Entity can pay upfront for the contractor to hire workers, buy materials, and start operations in a contract like the one described in Section 1?
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_payment_upfront_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	a. In practice, how much would usually be paid upfront for a contract like the one described in Section 1?
	 

	b. In practice, if an advance payment is usually issued, does the contractor have to provide a guarantee for receiving this payment?
	 FORMDROPDOWN 

Comment: 

	58. During the execution of the contract, does the legal framework establish a timeframe within which the Procuring Entity must process the payment once an invoice is received?
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_payment_timeframe_law_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	a. In practice, how many calendar days will be necessary on average for BidCo to receive payment once the invoice has been delivered to the relevant authority?
	 

	b. In practice, how many people would need to authorize payment within the procuring entity before payment is made?
	 

	c. In practice, how often will BidCo receive payment within the timeframe established by the legal framework?


	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	d. If “Very Rarely” or “Rarely”, what are the main reasons for delay?
	 

	e. According to the legal framework, is the company entitled to claim interest on late payments if the Procuring Entity does not pay within the legally-established timeframe?
	Last Year: «DB_Proc_payment_late_interest_law_yes_no_publi»
This Year:  FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	f. If “Yes”, in practice how often would such interest on late payment be paid to the company?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	g. In practice, for a contract like the one described in Section 1, how many days would pass on average between the moment BidCo notifies the Procuring Entity that the works are completed and a formal agreement between them stipulating that the works are indeed finished and comply with the contract specifications (i.e. a certificate of completion of works)? Please include the time for the Procuring Entity to conduct a final inspection.
	

	h. How often do disagreements between the Procuring Entity and BidCo on the completed works delay the process of reaching a formal agreement that the works are finished?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	i. In practice, by how many days would the time you indicated in Q.58.g be extended to resolve this disagreement and obtain a certificate of completion of works from the Procuring Entity?
	 

	59. Assuming that BidCo delivers works complying with the quality standards agreed-upon in the contract, within budget and on time, what strategies, if any, does the Procuring Entity use to delay or avoid payment?
	 

	a. In practice, once the works are completed according to the contract, how often are they not entirely paid by the Procuring Entity? Please exclude contractual payment retentions and include only cases in which payment is due, but not made.

	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	b. If non-payment or delays in payment are common, how often would BidCo resort to informal payments to facilitate payment?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	c. In practice, how often is a portion of the payment retained to guarantee the works for a predetermined amount of time? 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)


	INSPECTIONS & WARRANTIES

	60. Does the procuring entity have guidelines or protocols regulating inspections on the quality of the works?
	 FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	61. Which of the following is true for a contract like the one described in Section 1? Please select the most common option only.
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Inspections are carried out before every payment

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Inspections are carried out before some – but not all – payments

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Inspections are carried out routinely, but are not connected with payments

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Inspections are carried out randomly

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Only one final inspection is conducted

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No inspections are conducted

Comment: 

	62. According to the legal framework, is BidCo required to provide a guarantee upon completion of the works? Please do not include warranties and defects liabilities that do not impose a financial burden on BidCo. 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes - Please select all legally-available forms:
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Retention of the whole performance guarantee

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Retention of part of the performance guarantee – Please specify the amount (%): 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Insurance guarantee

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Bank guarantee / Letter of credit

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Payment retention 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other, please explain 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No

	63. If a post-completion guarantee is not required by law would it usually be requested by the Procuring Entity for a contract like the one described in Section 1?
	 FORMDROPDOWN 

Comment: 

	64. In practice, which instrument of post-completion guarantee would the Procuring Entity most commonly request? Please do not include warranties and defects liabilities that do not impose a financial burden on BidCo.
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Retention of the whole performance guarantee

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Retention of part of the performance guarantee – Please specify the amount (%): 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Insurance guarantee

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Bank guarantee / Letter of credit

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Payment retention 
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other, please explain 

	65. In practice, how long after completion of the works is BidCo required to maintain the instrument you selected in Q.64?
	 


	DELAYS & OVERRUNS

	66. In practice, how often are the works delivered within the original deadline?
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	67. In practice, if delays are common, what are the main reasons for them? Select all that apply.

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Political events (elections, lack of security in project areas, national referendums, etc.)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Weather shocks (natural disasters, flooding, etc.)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Burdensome administrative processes within the procuring entity

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Capacity of the procuring entity (staff/skills/budgetary constraints)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Capacity of the contractor (technical/financial/managerial/human capital constraints)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Poor planning on the procuring entity’s side (poorly designed project specifications, etc.)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Poor planning on the contractor's side

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Change of project scope

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other, please explain 

	68. In practice, how often are the works delivered within the original budget? 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very rarely (< 10% of cases)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Rarely (between 10-25%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Occasionally (between 25-50%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Often (between 50-90%)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Very often (> 90%)

	69. In practice, if cost overruns are common, what are the main reasons for them? Select all that apply.
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Market conditions (changes in input prices, fluctuations in exchange rate, etc.)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Political events (elections, lack of security in project areas, national referendums, etc.)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Weather shocks (natural disasters, flooding, etc.)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Burdensome administrative processes within the procuring entity

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Capacity of the procuring entity (staff/skills/budgetary constraints)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Capacity of the contractor (technical/financial/managerial/human capital constraints)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Poor planning on the procuring entity’s side (poorly designed project specifications, etc.)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Poor planning on the contractor's side

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Change of project scope

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other, please explain 


5. Formal Challenges throughout the Procurement Process
In answering, please refer to the Procuring Entity you selected in Q.1.
5.1 Challenging the tender documents before the submission deadline
In answering the following questions please assume that:

· The Procuring Entity you selected in Q.1 publishes tender documents for a road works contract. 

· Before the deadline to submit the bids, 3 companies challenge the tender documents on the following grounds:

· Company 1 argues that the tender documents favor one specific bidder.

· Company 2 argues that one of the evaluation criteria establishing that the Project Manager assigned to the project has at least 20 years of experience is arbitrary and should not be used.

· Company 3 argues that requiring a 10% performance guarantee hinders access to SMEs.

Assume all challengers submit their claims within the legal deadlines, free of mistakes, pay the fees associated with their challenges, and pursue their claims until no further legal remedy is available. Please include all administrative, judicial and quasi-judicial authorities that may be involved in the process. 

	
	Answer

	70. According to the legal framework, can tender documents be challenged prior to the deadline to submit bids? If “No”, please skip to Q.73.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 

Legal Basis: 

	71. According to the legal framework, who has legal standing to challenge tender documents?

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Potential bidders

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Organizations/individuals with legitimate interests (i.e. neighbors)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Organizations that protect public goods (i.e. environment NGO)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Anyone

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other – please explain: 
Legal Basis: 

	First Instance
	a. Which authority would hear the challenge? If more than one is possible, please list all relevant authorities and specify which one a complaining party would most commonly choose.
	 

	
	b. How often would tender documents for a road works contracts advertised by the Procuring Entity be challenged? 
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	
	c. Calendar days in practice between the moment a challenge is filed and the day the complaining party receives a decision.
	 

	
	d. Would the challenge suspend the procurement process?
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	Second Instance


	a. To which authority would the first instance decision be appealed? 
	 

	
	b. How often would the first instance decision be appealed? 
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	
	c. Calendar days in practice between the moment the decision is appealed and the day the complaining party receives a decision.
	 

	
	d. Would the appeal suspend the procurement process?
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	Third Instance


	a. To which authority would the second instance decision be appealed? 
	 

	
	b. How often would the second instance decision be appealed? 
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	
	c. Calendar days in practice between the moment the decision is appealed and the day the complaining party receives a decision.
	 

	
	d. Would the appeal suspend the procurement process?
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	72. If more than 3 instances of review are available, please list the authorities and resolution times for all further tiers of review.
	 


5.2 Challenging the contract award
In answering the following questions please assume that:

· The Procuring Entity you selected in Q.1 has awarded a works contract to BidCo. 

· Three companies challenge the award on the following grounds:

· Company 1 argues that BidCo submitted a recklessly low bid that should have been excluded. 

· Company 2 argues that one of the evaluation criteria was used arbitrarily by the Procuring Entity to reduce the Company’s final score. 

· Company 3 argues that the technical project they submitted met the minimum standards established by the tender documents and should not have been excluded.

Assume all challengers submit their claims within the legal deadlines, free of mistakes, pay the fees associated with their challenges, and pursue their claims until no further legal remedy is available. Please include all administrative, judicial and quasi-judicial authorities that may be involved in the process. 

	
	Answer

	73. According to the legal framework, who has legal standing to challenge the contract award?

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Bidders

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Organizations/individuals with legitimate interests (i.e. neighbors)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Organizations that protect public goods (i.e. environment NGO)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Anyone

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other – please explain: 
Legal Basis: 

	First Instance
	a. Which authority would hear the challenge? If more than one is possible, please list all relevant authorities and specify which one a complaining party would most commonly choose.
	 

	
	b. How often would the award of a road works contracts rendered by the Procuring Entity be challenged? 
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	
	c. Calendar days in practice between the moment a challenge is filed and the day the complaining party receives a decision.
	 

	
	d. Would the challenge suspend the procurement process?
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	Second Instance


	a. To which authority would the first instance decision be appealed? 
	 

	
	b. How often would the first instance decision be appealed? 
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	
	c. Calendar days in practice between the moment the decision is appealed and the day the complaining party receives a decision.
	 

	
	d. Would the appeal suspend the procurement process?
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	Third Instance


	a. To which authority would the second instance decision be appealed? 
	 

	
	b. How often would the second instance decision be appealed? 
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	
	c. Calendar days in practice between the moment the decision is appealed and the day the complaining party receives a decision.
	 

	
	d. Would the appeal suspend the procurement process?
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	74. If more than 3 instances of review are available, please list the authorities and resolution times for all further tiers of review.
	 


6. Research – Criticalities of the Procurement Process
How often are the following strategies used by the Procuring Entity to circumvent public procurement rules?

	
	Answer

	Not advertise procurement opportunities long enough to minimize competition. 
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	Prioritize projects without sufficient motivation just to benefit a particular bidder.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	Use non-competitive procurement methods instead of open tendering to restrict market entry.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	Define technical specifications to benefit a specific bidder.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	Irregularities during the bidding process.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	Hold informal meetings with individual bidders.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	Unilaterally change some of the tendering requirements after the bid is opened, but before the contract is signed.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	Biased interpretation of the selection criteria.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	Change the award criteria after the bids are opened.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	Add specific obligations in the contract that were not previously incorporated in the tender documents, and by doing so impose unnecessary burdens on the contractor.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	Delay payments to the contractor to request other works not included in the tender documents.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	Delay the certification of completion of the contract to obtain other works/goods/services not previously included in the tender documents.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 


	Unilaterally and arbitrarily terminate the contract.
	 FORMDROPDOWN 



How often are the following strategies used by private sector companies to circumvent public procurement rules?

	
	Answer

	Collusion between bidders
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	Collusion with the Procuring Entity, to negate market entry to other competitors.
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	Submission of recklessly low bids to win the tender.
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	Falsification of documents or failure to disclose essential information in the bidder’s offer.
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	Informally paying public officials.
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	Abuse the renegotiation process to increase the price or the scope of the project without another competitive process.
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	Delay the execution of the contract to coerce the Procuring Entity to award other contracts to the same company.
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	Execute the contract with less quality or with different technical specifications than were submitted during the tender process.
	  FORMDROPDOWN 


	Employ subcontractors that were neither properly selected nor disclosed during the tender process.
	  FORMDROPDOWN 



Note: The survey was administered as part of the World Bank Doing Business 2020 data collection cycle, between November 2018 and August 2019. 
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